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Selfridges Retail Limited

Strategic report for the peried ended 29 January 2022

The Directars present their srategic report and the audlited financial statements of Selfridges Retail Limited ("Seffidges" or "the Company”) for the 52 week
period ended 29 January 2022 (2021: 52 week period ended 30 January 2021).

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Company are retall, operating fowr stores in the LK as well ns o digital retail buginess through our website and mobile
applcahon. Selfridges is mcarporated in the UK and headguartered in Lendeon. The Company is a subsidiary within the Selffridges group of companies
("Selfridgas Group" or "the Group"), whase principal business is holding retail nvestments, and which consists of SHEL Holdings Europe Limited ("SHEL") and
its key operating subsidiaries.

Since 1909 Selfidges has been at the forefront of retail. offerng amazing destinations and unique shopping experiences for both domestic and
International customers.

Selfridges’ Vision 15 to reinvent retail and our Purpose is to imagine and create a sustainable future for our customers, The guiding principles for the Vision
are putting the customer al the heart of everything we do. creating experiences thal keep customars coming back and changing the way we shop. These
prnciples speak directly o aur customer oufcomes: we want 1o know one milion more cusfomers; we want each cusfomer fo make two mare visits & year;
and we will encourage our customers to each make ane sustainable choice.

Selfridgas aims to help cusfomers shog more sustainably in three ways: by addressing the materials used in preduets: by launching and explonng new
retail modeals such as repair, rental, refill and resale, and by engaging with teams. partners and customers to inspire a shift in mindsets.

Selfridges’ rade and revenue caontinued lo feel the effects of the Covidh19 pandemic throughout the financial period. with stores closed far the first 10
waeks of the year and some restrictions affecting businass throughaut. The Company's key priorities continued to be protecting the health and wellbeing
of its custormers and team members, and the Company has continued to closely monitor and foliow the guidance issued by the UK Government. Despite
the challenges, Selfridges is set up for a long and sustainable future.

Review of the business

In 2021, Selfndges Retail Limited's ulfimate parent company, Wittingtan Investments, Limited ("WIL"), undertock a review of sirategic options for its European
retail frading businessas in the United Kingdam, the Netherlands. and Ireland, which included online and digital businesses and real estate haoldings used
in the retail businesses. As a result of this revicw, WIL through o subsidiary, entered into a sale and purchase agreement ("SPA") signed on 23 December
2021 with entifies jeintly confrolled by Cenfral Group and Signa Holding (collectively. the "Buyers™). Pursuant to the SPA, WIL's subsidiary has agreed 1o sell
to the Buyers the companies cperating its European retall businesses including the indiract parent af the Company, SHEL Heldings Europe Limited (the
“Transaclion™). The Transaction is expected to close in the coming monlhs upon safisfaction of closing conditions.

Revenue in the 52 weeks to 29 January 2022 was £653 Am (2021 £508.5m), an incredse of 28 per cent. The Company's stores were closed af the start of
2021 but overall were open for a greater proportian of the 2021/22 financial periad than they were during the comparative period in 2020/21, leading to
the increasa in revenue

The cperating less far the 52 weeks fo 29 January 2022 was £38.1m (Restated 2021: loss of £136.9m). The closure of stores of the beginning of the financial
pericd adversely Impacted the Company's profitability and caused the Company to record an operating loss, but the adverse impact was lower thanin
the previous financiafl period.

Al 29 January 2022 the Company had ref assets of £187.4m (Restated 2021: £203.7my). with the reduction again largely driven by the impact of the Covid-
19 pandemic.

During the year the Company faok a number of steps which strengthened its balance sheet. The Company received investments from ity immediate
parert company totaliing £130.0m, undertock a share capital reduction. and paid a diidend of £80.0m which was retained by its immediate parent.
providing an overall net benefit of £50.0m 1o the Company. The dividend arose from an internal restruciuring of the Company's corporate structure prior
to the signing of the SPA.

The dividend represented £0.14 per ardinary £0.20 share and was paid during the period ¢(2021: no dividend was paid).

Principal risks and uncertainties

Selfridges recognisas that risks are inherent in the operation of its business and takes o proactive approach to managing and mitigating risks.

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for determining the nature and extent of the principai risks the Company i8 wiling 1o take 1o achieve its
Vision and Purpase; day to day responsibility for this is delegated to and actively managed by the Executive Committec. An Executive Risk Management
Committee meets quarterly to support the Board of Directors in identifying and managing principal risks and uncertainties, with strategies developed to
mitigate risk and minimise impact Bl-annually. principal risks are discussed at o meeting of the Audit Committee, as appointed by the Board of Directors,

The Executive Committee’s review of risks and risk appetite takes inta consideration the Company's risk folerance level across the following Tour risk factors:
strategio. operational, financial, and regulatory. This analysis provides direction and boundaries for consistent, risk-aware decision-rnaking throughout the
business.

The Company accepls a certain level of risk to achieve growth and successfully mee? its objectives; though the exfent of nsk appetite varies by risk factor.
Complying with applicable lows and doing the right thing is an important part of the Company's culture ond values. The interests and sofety of customers
and team members remain a top onanty, as well as protecting the longterm value and reputation of the brand. The Code of Ethics describes how we use
our vaiues to guide us through a range of topics, including exploring new Initictives and opportunities, and seeking to maximise commercial benefits to
support responisible and sustainable growth.
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Selfridges Retail Lirmited

Strategic report for the peried ended 29 January 2022 (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties {continued)
Tha principal risks affecting the Commpuny's shalegy and business relate 1o

* The glnbal Covid-19 pandemic - supported by key business experts, the Executive Committee meet regularly to evaluate the latest information. review
cantrols, and monitor the impact on team members, customars. oparations, stack, liquidity and capital management:

* Mesating the needs and cxpectations of our customers - ensuring the customer oifer, sales. experience and retention remain a key focus through all
channels, the end-to-end customer experience, and supparting sustainable growth;

* Environment, social and governance issues (ESG) - ESG issues impact across all of the business and are important fo people and to the planet. The
Company recognises the need to respend proactively to external ESG factars, regulations and customer expectatons ond to adapt retail models,
mindsets, brand offers and waoys of working to create a sustanable future business;

* Cyber ond infermation security, including data privacy and security - the Company fakes a structured approach to strategy and governance in these
areas, with a roadmap tor future improvement and Investment,

= External factors impacting the Company - these include post-Brexit trade and export challenges, sconomic challenges due o Cowd-19, and increasing
regulatory environment, which the Company monitars proaatively in order to understand and adapt to new requirements, ana

* Mayjor incidents - ¢risis response and recovery planning remains well tested, and the process of continucus improverment enhances business resflience,

Key performance indicators ("KPIs*)

The Directors believe that other than the statutory KPIs of revenue, gross profit and operating loss set out in the statement of comprehensive income there
are no ather KPIs required fo be reported to give o full understanding of the business.

Saction 172(1) Statement
Directors and Decision Making

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 requires a director of a company to act in the way they consider In good faith is most likely to promcte the success
of the company for the beneiit of its members as a whole. In deing so. a directar should have regard (amongst other matters) ta-

a. the likely consequence of any decision in the long term.

b the interests of the Company’'s employees.

¢. the neead to faster the Company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others.

d. the impact of the Company’s operations on the community and the environment,

€. the desirability of the Company maintcining a reputation for high standards of business conduct,
1. the need to act fairly as between members of the Company.

In discharging their duhes, the Directors have regard to these matters Other factors may be relevant to certain decisions and may clso be taken into
acccount as appropriate. The Directors aim to ensure that decisions are made in accordance with the Company’s Visien and Purpose.

Selfridges has a Board of Directors and an Executive Commiffee. The Executive Committes is comprised of executve directars, including certain board
directors. Each of the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee have had training in directors’ duties. The Executive Committee has delegated
responsibility for the day to day running of the business, adhenng o and implementing the Vision and Purpose, supcrvising the management of the
business and reporting to Selfridges’ parent compainy.

The Direclors support principles of good govemance. The Wates Carporate Governance Principles for Large Private Companies (the "Wates Principles™)
continued to be applied by the Company in the currant pericd, and the Board has set out in the Directars’ report on pages 8 and 9 how il appled those
principles to make decisions.

Selfidges confinues ta ensure that Board meestings are hald when appropriate, that clear terms of reference are in place and that the meetings dre
adequately recarded. Key decisions of the Board of Direclors during the reporting period included

Financial Matters

During the periad. the Directors continued to take decisive action o provide financial resilience and flexibility to manage the adverse impact of the Covid-
19 pandemic on the liquidity and profitability of the business. The Company renegatiated the covenants relafing to its £50 0m revolving bank facility,
contnued ta draw on the revolving facility throughout the financial pencd. increased the maximum size of o borrowing facility with another company
within the Selfridges Group from £80.0m to £120.0m, and drew on a portion of that facility during the year. Al the balance sheet date the Company
continued to barow £50.0m under the revolving credit facility but had reppaid all borrowings under the facility with anather compary within the Seltndges
Group. In addition. costs ond cash flow continued 1o be hghtly contralled, and the Company availed itself of the business rates relief offered fo reiail and
hospitality in the early part of the year,

Buring the yeaor the Company fook a number of steps which strengthened its balance sheet. The Company received invesimenits from its immediate
parent company totalling £130.0m. undertook @ share capital reduction, and paid a dividend of £80.0m which was retained by its immediate parent,
providing an overall net benefit of £50.0m ¢ the Company. The dividend arcse frorm an intarnal restructuring of the Company's corporate structure prior
to the signing of the SPA.

In March 2021 the IFRS Interpratations Committee (IFRIC) pubsished an agenda decision that clarified how the costs of Software gs a Senvice (Sads)
arrangements should be aocounfed for. The IFRIC stated that ¢ Saas arangement that conveys to the customer only the right to receive access to the
suppliers application software 15 @ service confract (rather than o software lease or the acquisition of a software intangible asset) as the customer does
nat have contral of the soffware. The consequence of the agenda decision Is that that Saas related costs that would previously have been caprtalised as
intangible assets should instead be expensed against profit or lass.

As a resull of this decision, the Group has revised its accounting policy. assessed the impact of this change in policy on ihe curent and prior year and
accounted for this changa as a prior year adjustment as disclosed in nate 2(c) of the financial statemenits.

Covic-19 response

The Company continued to respond to the Covid-19 pandemic and Government Regulations and guidance. which included closing stores at the
baginning of the pared, adopting and menitoring rules requinng face covenngs. continuing to support effice-based feam members to work from home
when this was advised, infroducing a hybrid and flexible working model as offices reopened: managing suppliers, customers, inventories, travel ond other
business impacts. Clear, relevant, compliant and effective communication with team memibers and custorners has remained a focus throughaout the

period.

Other Matters
The Board of Direclors met fo approve corporate reports 1o be published on Selfndges’ tax strategy, gender pay aap and medern slavery.
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Selfridges Retail Limited

Strategic report for tha period ended 29 January 2022 (continued)

Engaging with stakeholders

Selfridgos and ifs Directors underalund Ihal sliong engagement with key stakeholders is vital fo continued business success and the effective delivery of
the Vision and Purpose. The kay stakeholders for Salfridges are:

i. Team members
Those employed by Selfridges and others working on our sites. employed by our partners, concessions and suppliers

Seliridges and ifs Directors recognise the importance of team members teeling informed, involved in and inspired by the Company's Vision and Purpose.
The need for supportive and clear communication and strong engagement has been paramount throughout the period, particularty as the pandemic
and its impact continuad

The Comparny uses emal, a Yammer platform, Workday, manager briafings, small and large group meetings (many of which continued to be held
virtually in 20213, pulse surveys and open channels of communication ta ask for, listen to and respond to the views, questians, concerns and ideas of team
membears. Promohng diversity and inclusion, responding to the Covid-19 pandemic, and focusing on health and wellosing remained a key area of focus
throughout the peried.

There are many communities for tearm members to join and they provided essential suppaori and communication channels for team members, such as a
Well-Being community and voluntearing opportunities with charity partners.

The Gompany's tnros on divarsty and inclusion continued 0 2021; Ihe recently establshed Diversity Boord made up of elected team members
established its role with support from the Board; its areas of focus centred around awareness and education, the products and brands offered to
custarmers and driving a culiure where everyone s welcome. The Campany undertook a culfural assessment across the business and encouraged all
team memibers 10 update their records to provide their personal data in order 1o establish the Company’s baseline from which to build an approach to
recruitment and retention which promotes true diversity and inclusion at all levels of the Company.

The Company’s strategy. budget and plans are shared with team mambers at the outsat of the year. The Company's financial performance is discussed
reqularly throughout the period, with webcasts from the Directors. frade meetings. financial performanas review meetings. updates on strategic inifiatives
and other big and small group meetings across the Company to ensure all feam memibers are kept Up fo date, noting the events, economic factors,
trends or other matters which impact business and financial performance.

2. Customers

Selfridges puts the custormer at the heart of everything we do and asks for custamer feedback through numerous channels: ot point of sale instore and
net promoter score feedback through digital sales: via independently canduciod customer surveys and through listening fo custorner feedback through
Personal Shopping and clienteling appaintments; through social channels and also via the cusfomer conlact centre. In 2021, there continued 1o be o
focus on digital and social channel engagement, as well as virual shopping services and appointments. Sefindges and its Directors strive to consistently
drive innovation, success and amazing custorner experiences by listening and responding 1o the customer.

3. Shareholder and parent company

Thera are regular meehng betweean Selfndges and the Directors and executive management of its parent cormpany. There is ongoing engagament and
menthly business review meelings fo provide the Coampary with appropnate oversight and approvals of key malfers such as shrategic plans. capital
expendiures and budgets. In addition, there is o governance structure in place that includaes bi-onnugl Audit Committee meeting which are attended by
representatives of the Company and the sharsholders.

4. Suppliers - concessions, brand partners, suppliers of IT, lech and digital products and services. other supphiers of goods not for re-sale and services.

Directors and senior managers hold regular meetings with large and small suppliers throughaout the year to discuss products and services supplied, to
collaborate on new ideas. to discuss performance and KPIs. as well as to engage suppliers on sustainability. ethical trade requirements and modern
slavery. Key suppliers and partners are invited to a launch event referred to as Open House at Selfridges at the beginning of the vear 1o see and hear the
strategy and inihatives for the upcoming year. Selfridges has very strong relationships with the partner brands supplying geoods for sale and operatfing as
concessions, with regulor meetings, frequent collaborations and a praduct offer which is special, sometimes unique and offen has exclusive produsts on
saile in Selfridges. Seffridges has continued to find and infroduce to its Gustomers new and upcoming brands and diverse designers. many with @ focus on
sustainability.

& Community

This includes the local communities physically sted around Selfridges’ business locations; charities we partner with in our cemmunihes; customer
communities, such os those passionate about certain praducts; of suppliers we have brough? together for o campaign or event Selfridges also racognises
the impact of iis busingss on the wider community and its responsioility in the tace of the global climate cnsis to piay its part in addressing this, s noted
ahove, and will continue to work clasely with Non-Governmental-Organisation (NGO) partners in pursuing our Vision and Purpese in ifs response to the
climate crisis.

Across all stores, Selfridges engages with neighbouring businesses, local authorities and councils, landlords, cusfomers and the wider community This
includes suppor for national and local charities and charitable initiatives. as well as social mability initiatives

Selfidges also actvely engages on a regular basis with NGOs, particularly arcund sustainability topics: as well as local law enforcement, public haalth
authorities and the Environmental Health teams of loca! qutherities, in 2021, this continued to have a focus on managing the business sarely through the
pandemic.,

Other stakehalders engaged include: local law enforcement, regulators including Trading Standards, HM Rovenue & Custorns (HMRC), legal authorities,
the Infarmation Commissioner's Cffice (ICO) and the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA).

Selfridges welcomes feedback and the Board of Directers and the Executive Committee will continue to review how the Company can improve
engagement with feam members and other stakeholders 1o drive the success of the business in line with our Vision and Purpose.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 13 July 2022 and signed by 1ts arder by,

DocuSignad by:

S Hé‘h‘lﬂ e"vuaamnw
Company Secretary
13 July 2022
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Selfridges Retail Limited

Directors' report for the period ended 29 January 2022

The Directors present ther report for tha 52 week period ended 29 January 2022 (2021: 52 week period ended 30 January 2021).

The Company 1s @ prvate company, Imted oy shares, neorparated and domiciled in the UK with headaquarters in London. The address of its registered
office 15 400 Oxford Sfreet, London, W1A 1AB, England. The immediate parent company 1s Selfndges & Co. limted. The ullimate parent company is
Withngton Investments, Umited. Since 190% Selfridges has been ot the forefront of retail, operahing o flagship slore in London, three further stores in
Mornichiesler and Birmingharn, and a digital relail business via our website and mobile application

future developments and going concern

Future growth is planned to be driven by investment in refail stores and digital channels.

Covid-19 continued fo have a significant shor-term impact on the Company's profitability and the Directors took o number of steps to manage the
associated liquidity risk, including fully drawing down on its £60.0m revolving credit facility, renegotiating the terms of that tacility. and partally drawing
down on a £120.0m facility with a company within the Selfrdges Group. Trading conditions improved in the lafter part of fhe peried and the Company
had repaid its barrowings from « fellow Group company atf the balance sheet date. The £50.0m revolving credit facility remamned fully drawn at the
balance sheet date.

The Directors have also stress-tested forecasts and under o severe but plausible downside scenario of cngeing adverse impacts from the pandemic, the
Company currently has access to sufficient borrowing facilities and on this basis the Directors confinue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements for the Company. However, in light of the pending sale of the Company to the Buyers, the completion of the sale process will result in
a change of contral that will tngger provisians within the borrowing facilifies that could result in them becoming uncvailable to the Company. although thas
is not anticipated. The Directors expect that on completion of the sales process. current faciliies will ether confinue (subject to agreement with the
fnancing provider), ar be replaced with at least equivalent faciities. As the completion of the sale and the availability of funding is not yet finalised as of
Ihe date of signing 1he financial statements, this represents a material uncertainty that moy cast significant doubt about the Company’s akility to continue
as a gaing cancern. These financial statements do not nclude the adpustments that would result if the Company were unable fo continue as o going
concern. Further details are given in note 2(e) to the linancial staterments.

Financial risk management

The prncipal risks faced by the Company are liquidity, counterparty exposures, foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations. The Company identifies.
evoluates and hedges financial risks, For further details of the Company's financial nsk management objecfives and policies. see note 22 to the financial
statements.

Directors
The Directors who held office during the pertod and up to the date the financial statements were signed are given below:

A Ritcher

S Hemsley

M Wall

M Srnith

A Keith

P § Binning (appointed 24 June 2022)
C Wright {appointed 24 June 2022)

As permitted by the Articles of Association, the directors have the benefit of an indermnity which is a qualifying third party indemnity provision as defined by
Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in force throughout the last financial pericd and 15 currently in farce, The Company qlso
purchased and maintained throughout the financial period directors’ and officers’ liakility insurance in respect of itself and ifts directors.

Results and dividends

The full resutts for the period are set out in the staterment of comprehensive income on page 14.
The Company's loss before income tax for the period 13 £121.5m (Restated 2021: £217.4m). The loss for the 52-week period fo 29 January 2022 of £83.9m
(Restated 2021: £175.4m) has been fransferred fo reserves.

During the year the Company took @ number of steps which strengthened its balance sheet. The Company recsived investments from its immediate
parant cormnpany totaling £130.0m, undertock a share capital reduction. and paid a dvidend of £80.0m which wos retained by ifs immediate parant,
providing an overall net benefit of £50.0m to the Company. The dividend arose from an internal restructunng of the Company’s corporale structure pror
fo the signing of the SPA.

The dividend of £0 14 per ordinary £0.20 share, amounting to £80.0m, was paid during the period (2021: no dividend was paid).

The Ditectors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

Diversity. eguity and inclusivity {including employees with disabilities)

Selfridges is proud to say that 'Everyone 15 Welcoms' and recognises that diversity in all areas is vital fo commercial success and fo the democratic vitality
of the business Sclindges is committed to employment policies, which tollow best practice and are based on equal opportunities for all.

The Company has a diversity policy which applies to all team members working in Selfrdges. Selfridges aims to encourage a diverse ond inclusive
community amongsf feam members, custorners and suppliers.

The Company has appointed a Diversity Board with a view to advancing diversity and eguity in Selfridges. Maore information on the Diversity Board 15 set aut
in the Strategic report.

As part of its commilment to diversity, equity and inclusion and as part of recognising il protected characteristics and the Company’s legal obligations,
as set out in the Equality Act 2010, the Company gives full and fair consideration to applications far employment from all backgrounds, including those
with disabilities.

Appropriate arrangements are made for the confinued employment and training, career development and promotion of disabled parsons employed by
the Company. It team members become disobled during their employment with the Company. arrangements are discussed to enable continuity of
employment and development as appropriate.
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Selfridges Retail Limitad

Directors' report for the period ended 29 January 2022 (continued)

Engagement with employees and business relationships

Letalls on how the Company and Selfndges has its Directors engoged with Selfridges’ employees (feam members) and other stakehelders throughout the
period are outlined within the Strategic report. The Company and ifs Directors will continue to review and adapt their approach during the year.

Code of Ethics

The Selfridges Group Code of Ethics sefs out our values and behaviours required to achieve the Vision and Purpose. It applies to Salfridges directors and
tearm membears but also to those we engage with, Including our partners.

Political and charitable denations

During the tinancial pericd, the Company made payments in relation to charftable donations amounting to £1,280,000 (2021: £726.000) o a number of
local. national and international charitable organisations. At the period end the Company had not commitied to any further charitable donations (2021:
&nily

No palitical contributions were made during the period (2027 $nily.

Post balance sheet events

The Company's £120.0m facility agreement with another entity under common control was due to mature on 10 June 2022, On 7 June 2022 the facility
agreement was reduced to £80.0m, with £40.0m maturing early, and the remaining facility extended for six months.

In the notmal course of business, the Cornpany and its subsidiary are subject fo legal proceedings. including regulatory oudits, reviews and investigations.
Management regularly reviews such praceedings and establishes provisions when o loss is assessed to be probable and the amount of the loss is
reasonably estimable, On 17 May 2022, the Company received a letfer from the European Commission in connection with its inveshgation of the fashion
sectar and requested information regarding the Company’s activities within the European Economic Area. The Company has provided the regquested
information and assessed the financial risk as remote.

Independent cuditors

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Chartered Accountants, will continue in office.

Company's registered number

The Company's registered number in 00097117,

Corporate Governance Statement

As noted in the Strategic report, the Company's Board of Directors has adopted the Wates Principles The Boord has alse considered the Companies
(Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018 (the Regulations) and the directors” duties to promole the success of the Company as set aut In Section 172
of the Companies Act 2006.

This report sets out the Six Wates Principles and how Selfridges applies these:

1. Purpose and Leaderstip

* Selfridges was founded in 1908 by Harry Gordon Selfridge and the first Seffridges store opened its doors in 1909; today, the Company and its Directors
continue to carry out our business in line with the principle that Everyane is Welcome and aim fo offer an extraordinary customer experience.

* Selfridges hos a clear and defined Vision and Purpase, as outlined in the Strategic report on page 4.
* The Board of Directors and the Executive Committee lead the business with Vision and Purpose across physical stores and digitally.

* The Vision and Purpose are embedded at every level of the business, alongside Seliridges’ sustainability commitments. Project Earth, outlined in mare
detail in the Directors' report on poge 10, embodied these commitments and targets to achieve science-based carbon reduction targets in goods and
services.

* The Selfridges Values of embrace evety self, create the extracrdinagry, and lead with purpese, resonate across all levels of the Company and inform how
business decisions are made and how team members are recognised and rewarded.

* Qur Code of Ethics, turther described in the Directors’ report above, sets out the high standards we expect as we work to achieve our Vision and
Purpose,

* The Executive Commiftee encourages all managers to recognise team members who demonstrate their cormmitment to our Values and sustainability
through recognition and reward schemes as well as bi-annual Extraordinary People Awards, although these activitics continued 1o be curtailed n 2021
due to the impact of Covid-19.

2 Boord Compuosition

* The size and compasition of the Board is considered fo be appropriate with all members making a valuable contribution. There is a balance of skills,
backgrounds, experience and knowledge The Board Is supportad by the Compaony Secretary. The list of Board members can be found in the Directors'

report on page 7.

* Board meetings are held four imes a year and more offen if required. The Directors ensure that the decision making is in ine with the Vision and Purpose.

* An induction is provided upon joining. and specific fraining on directers' dufies 1s provided once a year.

* Other training on key areas of risk or complionce (e.g data profection, health and safely, competition law, Corporate Hnances Act, antfi-bribary and
corruption) is provided from time to time, as appropriate  This ensures awareness remains curent and decision making across the Company is
underpinnad by considerations of compfiance and good governance.
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Directors' report for the period ended 29 January 2022 (continued)

Corporate Governance Statement {continuad)
3. Director Responsibilities

* The Board recognises the impartance of having an effective corporate governance framework with clear lines of accountabilty and responsibility to
support effective decision muking us parl of promoting the Company s success. Ihe Boord has developed and adopted the Vision and Purpose, reviews
finemcial performance and approves budgets, makes strategic decisions and ensures that odequate leadership is in place to implement decistons. The
Board of Directors approves reports required to be published by the Company each year, including statutory accounts, gender pay gap report. modern
slavery report, tax strategy and others.

* The Executive Committee Is supported by the senior management tearn from across the Company, Members of senior management will join members
of the Executve Committee for other executive led. decisicn making committess: for example, the Information Security Steeting Committee, which
oversees data protection, information security and cyber risk in the Company. This enables decision making to be delegoted to individuals with
oppropriate specialist skills and infroduces divarsity of thinking to the benefii of the Company and its Directors.

* The Execuiive Committee and Board of Directars, as well as other members of the senicr management team, are aware of therr duty to aveid contlicts of
inferest and g formal confirmation of any conflicts is requasted once a year.

* A whistieblowing / complaints reporting process (managed by a third party) 1s in place for all tearmn members working in Selfridges. This ensures that
there is a secure, ananymaus route for any cancearns to be ascalated to and addressed by the General Counsal and Managing Dircctor or Selfridges
Group, as approprata.

4. Oppartunity and fisk

= The Executive Commiftee and Board of Directors are committed to regularly reviewing the Company's Vision and Purpose fo ensure that these meet the
aim of promoting and delivering long term value.

* Principal nsks have been identified acrass the Company at o department, preject and corporate level, Risks are assessed on a matrix of impact
(hnancial and reputationaly and likelihaod, with farget risks noted and a plan to addraess, mtigate or improve the risk position where possible. Risks are
regularly reviewed, and the overarching corporate risk register is discussed at the quarterly Executive Risk Management Committee meetings, as well as bi-
annuaily at the meeting of the directors with the Audit Committee

* The Executive Risk Management Cammittee supports the Board of Direclors inidentifying and managing key corporate risk and identifying aclions for
directors/managers to addrass or mitigate those nisks. The Executive Risk Management Committee meetings are normally charred by the Stores Director

* The key corperata nisks are outlined in the pringipal risks and uncerfainties section of the Strategic report.

* The Audit Committee is appainted by the Board of Directors in consullahion with the shareholders and its responsibilities include reviewing the integrity of
the financial statements, relationship with the external auditors and effectiveness of internal inancial controls. The Audit Committee’s terms of reference
are reviewed each year,

* Other risks are managed by Dxecutive led sub-committees, such as dota protection, eyber and information security via the Information Security Steenng
Committee, and strategic projects (stores and technology) via programme gavernance meehngs led by members of the Executive Committee.

¢ Capital expenditure is governed by a dedicated framework iInclugding monthly maetings, which are attended by members of the Executive Committee
and Selfridges Group. A Contracts Authorisation Policy is in place across the Company.

* There are policies and procedures in place for other key risk arcas - ¢.g. antimoney laundering, ant-bribery and corruption and safe deposit
management procedures

5. Rermuneraton

* Selfridges Croup has a Remuneration Committee which reviews compensation for the Company's dreclors, Executive Committee and senior team
members ance a year.

* The Company has clegr pay structures based on grade, seniority and responsibiiity, with commission schemes in place in retall areas and bonus
schemes in place for retail managers and head office or back of house roles. Banus schemes are aligned with the Company's performance and
individual perfarmance, as well as behaviours in line with the Company's Vision, Purpese and Values.

* There is a longterm incentive plan in place for the Executive Committee and a small additional group of senior management in key roles to assist with
retention and to align decisions and behaviours with the longterm success of the Compony,

4. Stakeholder Relationships and Engagemant

* The Board and Executive Committee believe that engogement with stakeholders is key to the sUccess of the business

* Details of how Seliridges engages with team members, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders is addressed above within the Strategic report.
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Selfridges Retail Limited

Directors’ report for the period ended 29 January 2022 (continued)

Streamlined Energy and Carben Reporting

Under the requnermenls of Ihe Comparies Act 2006 (Strategic repeort and Directors’ report) Regulahons 2013 and the Companies {Directars’ report) and
Limited Liability Partrershiss (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations 2018 Seffiidges sets out here its Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR).

Selfndges is a UK business with a stere in ewcl of Lendon and Birmingham and two in Manchester which are the most significant users of energy, Selfridges
also cccupies office spaces, owns a limiled number of vehicles: and there are team members wheo travel for business. These aspects, including all stores
and offices where we are responsible for the consumption of enargy, are included in the below figures. Selfridges doas not awn any graduchon sites and
distripution is managed by a third-party partner, so not included in the figures reported below

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

Area . ‘ funit ‘ © |Pr2021-22  {FY202021  [% change
Energy consumed kwh 50,419,629| 41,922,022 20%
Scope 1 emissions tonnes COye 1,816 1,292 41%
Scaope 2 emissions tennes CO,e 8,596 8,128 6%
Scope 3 emissions tonnes CO,e 5 8 -38%
ion- 1
Tot-al !ocatlon based scope 1, 2 and 3 tonnes COe 10,817 9,428 10%
Greenhouse gas {GHG)|eMIssians
emissions GHG intensity {location-based emissions) tonnes CO,e /'000 sq ft a8 44
per sg ft of floor area
Total ket-| 2
(<] .a fnar et-based scope 1, 2 and 3 tonnes CO,e 1,077 1,074 0%
emissions
oHG | - y —
HG intensity (market-based emissions) tonnes CO,e /'000 sq ft 0c 05

per sq ft of floor area

= Energy consumed; Natural gas combusted, fuel used in owned vehicles or for business travel where fuel is
paid for, and purchased electricity consumed.

Definitions ®  Scope 1: Emissions from the combustion of natural gas and fuel used in owned vehicles.

. Scope 2: Emissions from the generation of purchased electricity.

= Scope 3: Emissions from business travel in rental cars or employee-owned vehicles.

s  Methodology: The Greenhouse Gas Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard (2015 revised edition).

s Conversion factors: UK Government GHG Conversion Factors for Cempany Reporting (2021).

. Market-based electricity: Renewable electricity is reported where evidenced by Renewabie Electricity
Methodology Certificates, renewahle energy supply is detailed on invoices, or REGO backed supply is confirmed.

s Market-based gas: Green gas (biomethane) is reported where evidenced by GGCS certificates of supply. The
associated CH4 and N20 emissions are accounted for in line with current guidance as set out in the UK
Government GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting (2021).

The Company confinues to invest to imprave operational efficiency across its stfores and other locotions. As part of a programme of investment,
mantenance and management, the Company continued to switch to LED ghting: invested in upgrading beiers, contral valves, pipework and pumps
and installed mation detector controls. The Company also continued to purchase elecincity and gas from certified renewable sources and maintained its
Carben Trust Standard for carbon, water and waste. However, enetgy consumphion increased versus the prior pened as Covid-19 restrictions were lifted
ond sa the stores were open for longer and so reguired lighting, heating and power. Looking forward, Selfridges expects energy usage, and resuling
greenhouse gas emisslons, 1o increase as Covid-19 related restrictions are fully lited. However, on-geing efficiency investiments will continue to help
Selfridges o manage its energy usage.

With a vision fa reinvent retail, Selfridges launched its sustainabiiity strategy. Project Earih, in 2020, with @ bold commitment to change the way we shop
and the way we do busingss. Built on three themes: driving @ fransifion to more sustainable materials, exploring new business models. and challenging the
mindsets of our partners and customers as well as our own teams; Project Earth is undarpinned by science-based targets as we lock to a nelzero future.

Selfndges has committed to reduce absolute scope 1 ond 2 emissions by 64% by 2030, and fo reduce absolute scope 3 emissions from purchased goods
and services by 30% by 2030, (both from a 2018 base year) Seilridges is developing a scope 1, 2 and 3 greenhouse gas reduction roadmap to help
identify the further actions needed o meet these targets, An upddte on the Company's actions ta reduce its greenhouse gas emissions will be provided
in Selfridges” first full Sustainability Repart which will be published later in 2022
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Selfridges Retail Limited

Directors' report for the pericd ended 29 January 2022 {continued)

Statement of directers’ respensibilities in respect of the financial statements
e Lirectors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have prepared the fihancial
stotements in accardance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101
"Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law).

Under company law, direciors must not approve the financial staternents unless they are satisfied thot they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that periad. In preparing the financial statements, the Direciors are reguired fo:

. select sutable accounting palicies and then apply them consistently;

. state whether applicable United Kingdomn Accounting $tandards, comprising FRS 101, have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements:

make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
prepare lhe financial stalements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue in businoss.

The Diractars are also respensible for sateguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps far tha prevantion and detection of
fraud and other iregularitios.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient 1o show and explan the Company's fransactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Cormpanies Act 2006,

Directars' confirmations
In the case of each directer in office at the date the Directors’ report is approved:
. 50 far as the Directar is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditors are unaware; and

. they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in arder to make themselves aware of any relevant oudit information
and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information.

Approved oy the Board of Directors on 13 July 2022 and signed by ifs order by:

DocuSignad by:
J-M—L M

S Hemnsley
Company Secretary
13 July 2022
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Selfridges Retail Limited

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Selfridges Retail
Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In cur opinion, Selfridges Retail Limiled's financial statements:

- give a trua and fair viaw of ihe stats of the company’s affairs as at 29 January 2022 and of its loss for the 52 wesk period then ended;

. have been propsrly prepared in accordance wilh United Kingdom Ganarsily Accapted Accounling Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 1071 “Reduced
Disclosura Framework™, and applicable law); and

. have been prepared in accordance with the reguiremants of lhe Companies Acl 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: the Balance sheet as at 29 January 2022; the Statement of comprahensive incoma and Statement of
changas in equity for the pariod then ended; and the nates to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We ronducted our audit In accordance with Intomational Standards on Auditing {UK) (TISAs (UK)™} and applicable law, Our responsibilities under 15As (UK) are turther described In the Auditors’
responsibllities for the audit of the financial statements section of our raport We believe that the audit avidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our epinlon.

Independence

Wa remained indepaendent of the company in accordance with the athical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statemants in the UK, which includes the FRG's Elhical Standard, as
applicable to cther entities of public interest, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibililies In accordance with these requiraments.

To the best of our knowledge and belisf, we deciara that non-audit services prohiblied by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided.
Cther than thase disciosad in nota B o the financlal statements, we have provided no non-audit services to the compary in the period under audit.

Material uncertainty related to geing concern

In forming our opinion on the financial statements, which is not modified, we have consldered the adequacy of the disclosure made in nete 2 to the financial stataments conceming the company's ability to
continue as 8 geing concarn, In 2021, the company's ultimate parent company, Witlingten Investments, Limitad ("WIL™), undertock a review of strategic options fer its retail trading businesses in the Unitad
Kingdom, tha Netherands, and Ireland (the group®). As a result of this review, ¥¥IL, through a subsidiary, anlered into a sale and purchase agreement {"SPA”) signed on 23 Decembar 2021 with entities
jointly controlled by Certral Group and SIGNA Group {collactively, the “Buyers®). Pursuant 1o tha SPA, WIL's subsidiary has agreed to =sll to the Buyers the companies operating its Furopsan retall
businesses including the company, Seifridges Retail Limiled. The acquisition is expected to close in the coming months upon the saf ion of closing itions. Tha company’s existing borrowing
facilties have a change in control clause and as a result these faciliies may need to be replaced. The group and the company are rellant on external financing facilities o allow it to meet Its liablities as
they fall due. At the date of signing, these facililies have not bean agreed and as a result the Directors de not currently have visibility of the source, natura and extent of this funding. These conditions, along
with the other matiers explained in note 2 to the financial statomants, indicata the existenca of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the company's abllity to continua as a going
concam. The finandal statements do not inciude the adjustments that would result if the company were unabls to continue as a going concern.

In auditing tha fi ial s, we have that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of acceunting in the preparation of the financial statemants is appropriate

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the company’s ability to continue o adopt the going concem basis of accounting Included:

. We have reviewed management's base case and severe ut plausible scenarig and the funding faclli currently available
. Wa challanged management on the assumptions used in the scenarios and considered alternative downside scenarics.

. We raviewsd the diractors' going concamn discicsuras neling the material uncertainty above and found them: o be consistent with the conglusions reached.

Our responsitikles and the rasponsibilities of tha directors with respect to gaing cancem are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the infarmation in the Annual Repart other than the financial staternents and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our
apinion on tha financial statemarts does not cover the other Information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, excapl to the extent ctherwise explicily stated in this repart, any ferm of
assuranca thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statemants, eur rasponsibility is to read the cther information and, in doing 5o, consider whether the other information is materfally inconsistent with the financial
stataments or our knowledge obtained In the audit, ar otherwisa app ta be i i If we identify an apparent material incanststency or material missiatement, wa are required to perfarm
procedures to conclude whether there Is @ material misstatement of the finandial stalemants or a material misstatament of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
thare s a material misstatement of this cther information, we are required te report that fact. We have nothing te report basad on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategis reporl and the Directors’ report, we also considered whathar the disclosures required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.
Based on our work undartaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us 2lsc to rapor cartain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic report and the Directors’ report

In our opinian, bassd on the work undartaken In the course of the audit, the information given in the Sirategic report and the Directors’ repart for the period ended 28 January 2022 s conslstent with the
finandial staternents and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requiraments.

in light of the knowladge and undsrstanding of the company and its envirenment obtained in the course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstaternants in the Strategic report and the Direciars’
report.
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Seifridges Retail Limited

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Selfridges Retail
Limited (continued)

Responsibilities for the financial statemants and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ respansibilites In respect of the financial statements, the directors are responsibie far the preparation of the financial statemeris In ascordance with
the apglicable framawork and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also respansible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
finangial staternents thal are free fram material misstatement, whether due to fraud of errar,

In prepanng the financial stalements. the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, tnatiers related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either Intend to fquidate the company o to cease operations, or have no realistic altermative but 1o do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to ablain reasonable assurance about whether the tinancial statements as a whale are free from malerial misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ repor
that includes our spinion. Reasonable assurance is & high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit canducted i1 accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatemants can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they cauld reasonably be expscted Lo influence the ecanomic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these Ninancial statements,

Irregularues, n¢luding fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and requlations. We design procedures in line with our responsibliiies, outlined above, to detect material misstatements 1n respect
of Irregularities, including fraud. The extent ta which our procedures are capabla of detecting imegularites, including fraud, 1s detaled below.

Based on our understanding of the company and industry, we identified that the principal nsks of non-campliance with laws and regulations related to taxes an income, sales and payroll, and we
cansidered the extent 10 which non-compliance mighl have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered lhoss laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial
statements such as the Companies Act 2006, We evaluated rnanagement's incentives and opportunites far fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (Including the nsk of ovemde of controls),
and determined that the principal nsks were relatad to posting inappropriate jeurnal entries to increase revenue and reduce losses and management bias in prepanng accounting estmates and

Judgements. Audit preceduras perfarmed by The engagement team included

- Enquiry of management and those charged with governance around actual and potential litgauon and claims;

* Revigwing minutes of meetings of thase charged with govemnance;

. Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supparting documentation to assess compliance with applicable laws and regulations:

. Identifying and testing journal enines mainly relating to entnes with unusual account combinations, entries pasted by unusual users, and entnes indluding specific words:

Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in significanl accodnting estimates, in partcular in relation to assumptions associated with defined benefit pensions, and
. Designing audit procedures 1o incorparate unpredictability arcund the nature, timing or extent of our testing.

There are inherent limitaians 1n the audit pracedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events
and transaclions reflected in the financial statements, Alao, the risk of nat detecting a material misstatemenl due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resutting from error, as fraud may
involve deliberats concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion,

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’

report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and anly far the company's members as a bady in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of lhe Gompanies Act 2006 and for na other purpose. We
do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose of to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands It may come save where expressly agreed

by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under tha Cempanies Act 2006 we are required to report ta you If, in our opinion:

- we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our sudit; or

- adequate accounting recards have not been kept by the company, or relurns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches notvisied by us; or
- certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made: or

. the financial staternents are not In agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have no exceptions o report ansing from this responsibility.

Owen Mackney (Senicr Statulory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutary Auditors
watferd

13 July 2022
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Selfridges Retail Limited

Statement of comprehensive income
for the period ended 29 January 2022

Revenus
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other operating income

Operating loss

Income from shares N group undertakings
Amounts written off investments

Loss befcre interest and income tax
Finunce costs

Loss before income tax

Incorne tax credit
Loss for the financial period

Other comprehensive income/ (expense)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of postemployment benefit obligations
Related tax

Tatal other comprehensive income/(expense)

Total comprehensive expense for the period

The results for the peried reflect trading from continuing operations.
Total comprehensive expsnse is aliocated in full fo the owners of the Company.

The statemant of comprehensive incorne far the 52 weeks ended 30 January 2021

52 weeks ended

Restated
52 weeks ended

29 January 2022 30 January 2021
Note £&m em
3 653.4 508.5
4 {2846.5) (250.7)
3646.9 257.8
4 (294.0) (282.6)
4 (113.0) (124.8)
5 2.4 127
(38.1) (136.9)
- 1.4
- (0.5}
(38.13 (136.0)
10 (83.4) (B1.4)
{121.5) (217.4)
1 376 42.0
(83.9) (175.4)
24 22.4 0.1
11 {4.6) 21
178 6.0
(&6.1) (183.4)

has peen restated as detailed in note 2(c).
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Balance sheet as at 29 January 2022
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Selfridges Retall Limited

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Property. plant and eguipment
Right-of-use assels

Investments

Total fixed assets

Defined benefit pension asset

Current assets

Inventories

Debtors

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Credifors - amounts falling due within one yaar

Net current assets

Total aissets less current liabilities

Creditors - amounts faling due after more than one year

Proavisions for liabilities
Net assets

Equity

Called up share capital
Retained eamings

Total shareholders' funds

The balance sheets at 30 January 2021 and 02 February 2020 have been restated as disclosed in note 2(c) of the financial statements.

24

18

20

21
23/24

25

The notes on pages 17 to 31 form an integral part of these financial staterments.

Restated Restated
At 24 January At 30 January AL 02 February
2022 2021 2020
Sm £m am
117.3 117.3 119.2
200.7 221.8 288.7
1.8159 1.852.3 1.893.6
2.133¢9 21814 22715
7.2 - -
Q0.2 77.1 100.1
119.8 &5.5 110.8
76.9 39.1 56.1
286.9 181.7 267.0
(277.1) (138.8) {208.9)
.8 429 58.1
2,150,9 2,234.3 2.329.6
(1,959.0) 2.013.2) 1921 7)
4.3) (17.4) (11.6)
187.8 203.7 386.3
112.8 1139 113.1
74.8 89.8 273.2
187.6 2037 386.3

The financial statements on pages 14 to 31 were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 13 July 2022 and were signed on It behalf by:

DocuSigned by:
ECT I Klnl

Matthew Smith
Director
13 July 2022
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Selfridges Retail Limited

Statement of changes in equily for the period ended 29 January 2022

Tatal

Called up lRetained shareholders'

Note: share capital eamings funds

gm em £m

Balance at 02 February 2020 (reported) 113.1 280.2 3933
Restatermnent 2 - {7.0) 7.0y
Balance at 02 February 2020 (restated) 113.3 273.2 386.3
Loss for the financial penod {restated) - (175.4) (17543
Other comprehensive expense - {8.0) (8.0)

Total comprehensive expense for the period (restated) - (i83.4) (183.4)

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity:
Crdinary share capital issued 25 0.8 - 0.8
Balance at 30 Jonuary 2021 {restated) 113.9 89.8 203.7
Loss for the financial period - (83.9) (83 9)
Other comprehensive income - 17.8 17.8
Total comprehensive expense far the period - {66.13 (66.1)
Transactions with owners. recorded directly in equity.

Ordinary share capital issued 25 130.0 - 1300
Reduction in issued share capital 25 131 1311 -
Dividends paid 12 - (80.03 (80.0)
Bolance at 2¢ January 2022 112.8 74.8 187.6

All changes in equity are attributable to the owners of the Company.
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Selfridges Retail Limitad

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 29 January 2022

1 General information
Selitidges Retail Limited operatas tour department stores in the UK and an online retail ste. Through the online service goods are sold globally. The
Company is a private company limited by shares ond is incorporated and domiciled in the UK. The address of its registered office is 400 Oxford
Street, London, W1A 14AB, England.

5]

Summary of significant gccounting palicies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are sef out below. These palicies have been consistently
applied to all the parieds presented, unless otherwise stated.

a) Basis of preparation
The financical statements of Selindges Retall Limited have been prepared in accordance with Finanaial Reporting Standard 101, 'Reduced Disclosure

Framewark' (FR§1Q1). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost corvention. as modiied by denvahve financial
liabilities measured at fair value through proiit or loss. and N accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to compantes under FRS 101,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 101 requires the use of certain crifical accounting estimates. It also requires
managemeni to exercise its judgerment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant fo the financial statements cre disclosed in note 2(2).

The following exemptions from the requirements of IFRS have been applied in the preparation of these financial statements, in accordonce with FRS
101:

- IFRS 7, *Financial Instrumants: Disclosures'.

- Paragraph 38 of IAS 1, 'Presentation of financial statements' comparative information requirements in respect of.

(N paragraph 79(a){iv) of IAS 1;

(0 paragraph 73(e) of IAS 14 Praperty, plant and equipment. and

(i} poragroph 118¢e) of 1AS 38 Infangible assets (recondiliations betwaen the carrying amaunt at the beginning and end of the period).

- The following paragraphs of IAS 1, 'Presentation of financial statements':

(i 10(d) (statement of cash flows):

fiy  10¢f) (@ statement of inancial position as at the beginning of the preceding period when an entity applies an accounting policy
retraspectively or makes o retrospective restaternent of lems in its financial statements, or when it reclassifies iterns in its inancial statements);

iy 16 (statement of complionce with ali IFRS);

(iv) 38A (requirement for minimum of two primary statermnents, inciuding cash flow staterments).

vy 38B-D (additional comparative informaticn):

{vi) 40AD (requirements for a third statement of financial position);

(i) 111 {cash flow statement information): and

{viily 134-136 (capital management disclosures).

- IAS 7, 'Statement of cash flows'.

- Paragraph 30 and 31 of IAS 8 'Accounting palicies, changes in accounling estimates and enors' {requirement for the disclosure of informaten
when an enfily has not applied @ new IFRS that has been issued but s not yet effeclive)

- Paragraph 17 of 1AS 24, 'Related party disclosures' (key management compensahon).

- The requirements in 1AS 24, 'Related party disclosures' fo disclose related party transactions entered into between twe ar more members ot o
group.

- Paragraphs 91 1o 99 of (FRS 13 'fair value measurement' (disclosure of valuation fechniques ond inputs Used for fair value measurements of
assets and liabllities).

b) Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards

In March 2021 the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRICY puklished an agenda decision that clarified how the costs of Software as o Service (ScoS)
arrangements should be accounted for. The IFRIC stated that ¢ Saad arangament that conveys to the custorner only the right to receive access fo
the suppliet's application soffware 15 a service contract (rather than g soffware lease or the acquisition of a software intangible asset) as the
customer does not have confrol of the software. The consequence of the agenda deaision is that that Sacs reiated costs that weuld previously
have been capitalised as infangible assets should instead be expensed against profit or loss. The decision has had a material impact on the
Company's financial statements, which 1s disclosed in note 2(c).

For the year ended 29 January 2022, the Company has adopted amendments 1o IFRS 9, 1AS 39, IFRS 7 and FRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Phase 2 as issued in August 2020 In accordance with the transiton provisions, the cmendments have been adopted refrospectively to financia’
nstruments. Comparative amounts hove not been restated. and there was no impact on the curtent parod opening reserves amounts on
adoption.

There were no other amendmants to accounting standards, or IFRIC interpretations that are effective for the penod ended 29 Jonuary 2022 that
have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

c) Restatements

In response to the IFRIC s agenda decigion relating 1o the costs of Saal arrangements the Company has retrospectively revised ity accounting
policy, assessed the impact of this change in policy on the current and prior year and accounted for this change as o prior year adjustment.
Accordingly, the prior period balance sheets at 30 January 2021 and 02 February 2020 have been restated in accordance with |AS 8, and, in
accordance with 145 1 (revised), a balance sheet of 02 February 2020 has been prasented. The following table demanstrates the impoct of the
change N accounting policy on previously reported financial staterments.

At 02 February  Adjustment At 02 February At 30 Jonuary  Adjusiment At 30 Jonuary|

2020 2020 2021 200

Reported Restated Reportad Restated

£m £m £m &m &m £rry

Statement of Operoting loss {*) - - - (1367) (5] (1359)
comprehensive Income  Inceme fax ciedit - - - 420 . 420
Loss for the finorcial pericd - - - {1752 a2 (175.4)

Bolance sheet Intangible assets 127.9 8.7 119.2 1262 BN 117.3
Trade and other recevables 1091 17 110.8 638 1.7 405

Retained earnings 280.2 (700 2732 970 {72 89.8

(*3 The adjusiments ralate to cost of sales (decrease of £0.1m), distibution costs (decrense of £0.8m) and adminislrative expenses (increase of
£1.1Tm).
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Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 2% January 2022 (continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

d) Accounting periods

The financial statements are drawn up to either a 52 or 53 week period, to the nearest Saturday ending within one week of 31 Jonuary in each year,
being 30 January in 2021 and 2% January in 2022

) Going concern

[

g

h

K

—

In adopting the going concern basis for preparing the financial staterments, the Direclers have considered the Company's business aclivifies, and
the Campany's principal risks and uncertainties, as set out in the Strategic report,

In paricular, the Directors have considered the impact of Covid-1% on the Company’s financial standing and sought to obtain the best possible
infarmation to enable them to assess the risks posed to the business. Covid-19 has had ¢ significant short-term impact on the Company’s profitability
and the Directors have taken a number of actions to manoge the associated liquidity risk. These include focusing on cost mitigation plans,
rephasing investment spend, and claiming business tax relief offered to retail and hospitality businesses in the early part of the financial peried. The
Company alsa renegatiated the covenants relating to its £50.0m revolving bank facility, continued to draw on the revolving facility throughout the
year, increased the maoximum siza of a borrowing facility with another company within the Selfridges Group from £80.0m to £120.0m, and drew on a
portion of that focility during the yvear, At the balance sheet date the Company confinued to borrow £50.0m under the revolving credit facility but
had repaid all borrowings under the faciity with another company within the Selfridges Group.

The Directors have also sfressfested forecasts and uinder 1 severe but plousible downside scenario of ongoing adverse impacts from the
pandemic, the Company currently has access to sufficient borrowing facilities and on this basis the Directors cantinue to adopt the going concem
basis in preparing the financial statements for the Company. However, in 2021, the Cormpany’s ultimate parent company, Withngton Investments,
Limited (*WIL"), undertaok a review of strategic options for its European retail trading businesses in the United Kingdom. the Neftherlands, and
Ireland, which included online and digital businesses ond real estate holdings used in the retail businesses. As a result of this review, WIL, through a
subsidiary, entered into a sale and purchase agreement ("5PA") signed on 23 December 2021 with entities jointly controlled by Central Group and
SIGNA Group (collectively, the "Buyers™). Pursuant to the SPA, WIL's subsidiary has agreed to sell o the Buyers the companies operating its Eurcpean
retail businesses Including the indirect parent of the Company. SHEL Holdings Europe Limited. The acquisition is expacted fo close in the coming
months upon satisfachon of closing conditions. In fight of the pending sale of the Company to the Buyers. the completion of the sale process will
result In a change of control that will frigger provisions within the borrowing facilities that could result in them becoming unavailable to the
Company. although this is not anficipated. The Directors expect that on completion of the sale process, curreni facilities will either continue {subject
to agreement with the financing provider).or be replaced with at least equivalent facilites. As the completion of the sale and the availability of
funding is not yet finalised as of the date of signing the financial statements. this represents o material uncerainty that may cast significant doubt
about the Company's ability to continue as @ going concemn. These financial statements do not include the adjustments that would result if the
Company were unable to continue as a going concern,

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are prasented in Great British Pounds {*GBP"). which 15 the Compony's functional currency Al financial information
presenfed in GBF has been rounded to the nearest hundred theusand.

3} Foreign currencies

Transactions denominated in forsign currencies are franslated at the exchange rafe at the date of the transachon. Foreign curency monetary
assets and liahilifies held at the end of the reporting period are translated at the cfosing balance sheet rate. The resulting exchange gain or loss is
recognised within the staterment of comprehensive income.

Consolidation

L

The Company is a whally owned subsidiary of Seffndges & Co. Limited, and of its interrnediate parent, SHEL Heldings Europe Limited. The financtal
statements centain infarmation about Selfridges Retail Limited as an individual company and do not contain consolidated financial informathon as
the parent of a group. The Campany 1s exempt under section 400 of the Companias Act 2006 from the reguirement to prepare consolidated
financial staterents as it and its subsidiary undertakings are included by full cansolidation in the consolidated financial statements of SHEL Holdings
Europe Limited. Copies of SHEL Holdings Europe Limited consohdated financial statements can be obtained frorm the Company Secretary at 103
Wigmore Street, London, W1l 1QS.

) Revenue accounting policy

Revenue, which excludes valus added tax, comprises:

{iy Sales to external customers of products and services, and
{iy Concession income eamed in raspact of sales made through cancession autlets,

Revenue from sales to external customers is recognised upon the delivery of the gaods and services to the custorners, being the point at which
control of the goods is passed. Concession income I1s recoghised when sales are made through the soncession outlets upon the delivery of goods
and services to customers. Discounts provided fo staff have been classified as deduchons against revenue.

Yy Government grants

Other operating income includes Government grants received by the Company. including amounts received from the UK Government through the
Caronavirus Job Retention Scheme, The Company recognises Gavernment grants when there is reasonable assurance that both the Company has
complied with the conditions of the grant and that the grant will be received. Government grants are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income on g systematic basis over the periods in which the related costs towards which they are intended to compensate are
recognised as expenses. No amounts from the UK Government Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme were received by the Company during the
current period.

Dividends

=

- Dividend income
Dividend income is recagnised when the right to receive payment is established Dividend income 1s presented as income from shares in group
undertakings in the statement of comprehensive incoms.

- Dividends payable
Final dividends are recarded in the financial staterments in the period in which they are approved by the Company’s shareholders. Interim dividends
are recorded in the period in which they are approved and paid.

Computer licenses

Acauired computer software licenses are capitaiised an The basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the spacific soffware. Thase costs
are amortised on a straight ine basis over the life of the associated support contract. licence costs relating fo SaaS arrangements are expensed as
incurred.
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Selfridges Retail Limited

Notes o the financial statements for the period ended 29 January 2022 (coniinued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

m} Computer software

Costs asseciated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of identificble and unigue software products controlled by the Company are recognised ds intangible ossels
when the following criteria are met.

- it 15 techrically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;

- rnanagement intends to complete the software product and use if;

- there is an ability to use the software product;

- it can be demonstrated how the soffware product will generate probable future economic benefits;

- adeguate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use the soffware product are available; and

- the expenditure aftributable to the software product during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly affributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software praduct include the software develocpment employes costs.
Other development expenditures that do nol meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred  Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are no? recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Costs directly relating 1o $aas arrangements are expensed as incurred, unless the Company has cantrol of the underlying Saas software. Where
Saas arrangements form part of wider capitalised Information Technalogy ('IT") projects where it is not possible to separately identify the design,
tasting, implementation and other general project costs that relote specifically to the Saa$ arrangement then g judgemental allocation of such
costs is calculated and expensed. Further details on this accounting judgement can be found In Note 2(z).

Computer software development costs recognised as ossets are amortised on a sfraight line basis over their estimated useful lives of between three
fo eighl years dependent on the nature of the specific software, history of usage and replacement of such soffware within the business and
daetailed project plans and strategy for future usage within the business.

n) Property, plant and equipment

Praperty. plant and equipment is stated at historical purchase cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes the original purchase price of the
asset and the costs atfributable ta bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write down the estimaled residual cost of fixed assets over thelr estimated useful fives by equal annual instalments as

follows:
%
Structural assets 3.33 to 50.00
Plant and machinery 5.00to 50.00
Fitures and fitings 5.00 to 50.00

Freehold land is net depreciated.
Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated untl they have been brought info use.

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed. and adjusted il appropriate, at the end of ecch reporiing pericd. An asset's camying
amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount If it s greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

The usetul life determined is based on the nature of the specific asset, history of usage and replacement of such assets within the Company.

Gains and losses an dispasals are determined by comparnng the proceeds with the carmsng amount, and they are recognised within ' Administrative
expenses’ in the statement of comprehensive income

oY Financial assets and liabilities

O Classification

The Company ciassifies its financial assets in tha following measurement categoeries:

- those to be measured subsaquently at fair value through profit or loss; and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.

Na tinancial assets are designated as fair value through other comprehensive income.

{y  Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures @ financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, fransachon costs that are directly attricutable 1o the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or ioss.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Cormpany's business model for managing the asset ond the cash flow
sharacteristios of the asset. There are two measurement categones into which the Group classifies its debt insiruments:

- Amortised cosh: assels that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at amartised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest
rote methad. Any gain or Ioss arising on derscagnition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses) together
with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses aro presented as o separate Ine item in the statement of comprehensive income.

- Far value through profit or loss (FVPL). assets that da not meet the crtfena for amortised cast or fair value through other comprehansive
income are measured at FYPL. A gain or 1033 on o debt investment that is subseguently measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
prasentad net within othear gains/{losses) in the period in which it arises.

(i) Impairment
The Company assesses on o forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt Instruments carried at amortised cost.
For trade recenvables, the group apples the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9. which reguires expectad lifetime losses to be recognised
from initicl recogniton of the recewvables. Far longer-term financial assets, the impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit nsk. Note 22 conlaing further detals on how the Company determines the impact of credi risk on
finangial assets
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Borrowings

Interost bearing bonk loans, loan notes, promissory notes and averdrafts ane inifilly recorded at fair value, which equals the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs. They cre subseguently held at amortised cost. Finance charges. including premiums payable on sefflement or redemption and
direct issue costs. are accounted for using an effective interest ra‘e method and dre added fo the carrying amount of the instrument to tha extent
that they are not settled in the period in which they arise.

Derivative financial insfruments
The Company primatily uses forward foreign currency contracts fo manage its exposures to fluctualions foreign exchonge rates. These instruments
are nol hedged and therefore all derivatives ars rmeasured at fair value through profil er loss

Investments in subsidiaries

The carrying value of investments in subsidiary undertakings 1s stated after deducting any provision for impairment In value. An investment 1s
deemed 10 be impaired when its carrying amount 1s greater than its estimated racoverable amount, which is the hugher of net realisable value and
value in use. Future cash flows arising from investments. discounted at an appropriate rate, are used to determine value in use. Any mpairment
arising is chorged to the statement of comprehensive income.

Current and deferred taxation

The tax credit for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statermnent of comprehensive income, except to the extent
that it relates to iterns recognised in other comprehensive incomne or directly in equily. In this case, the tox is also recognised In othar comprehensive
incorne or drrectly in equity, respechveby.

The current income tax charge 18 calculated on the basis of the tax laws enaated or substantively enacted at the balonce sheet date in the
sountries where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation 1s subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appreprate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax autherities.

Dsterred income tax is recognised on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and liabilthes and their carrying cmounts in the
financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised If they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; deferred income tax is
not accounted for it it arises from initial recognition of an asset or lidbility In @ transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transachon offects neither accounting nar taxable profit or loss. Deferred incorne tax is determined using fax rates laws that have been enocted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected fo apply when the related deferred income fax assef 1s realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settied.

Deferred income tax assets dre recognised anly 1o the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be ovailable against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred Income tax assets and labilities are offset when there is o legally enforcealsle right to offset current tax assets against current tax ligbilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilites relale to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to seftle the balances on a net basis.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other recewvables include amaunts receivable In the ordinary course of business for customer fransactions paid on credit and charge
cards and amounts due from suppliers including marketing contributions and inventory returns.

Inventeories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated as a weighted average. All inventories are finished goods. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of businass, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Provisions for impairment are made whera necessary for obsolate inventories.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes shorerm deposits with banks and other financial institutions, with an inmal maturity of three months or less.

Employee benefits

Defined benefit pension scheme

Selfidges Retail Limted operates the Selfridges Pension Scheme for the benefit of all employees who wera memers at 31 October 2001, the date af
which the scheme was closed to new members. The Scheme is a funded defined benefit scheme which is periodically valued and has contributions
assessed by a qualified actuary. The assels of the Scheme are held by Trusteas in independent funds which are separate from the assets af he
Company.

The asset/(liabiity) recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit obiigation
at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually using the projected unit
credit methed. The present value of the defined benetit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash cutflows using interest
rates of high-quality corparate bonds that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension obligahon.

Remeasurement gans and losses ansing from experience adjustments and changes in actuanal assumptions are charged or credited fo equrty in
other comprehensive income in the perod in which they arise. The amount charged or credited o finance costs is g netinferest amount calculated
by applying the liahility discount rate to the net defined benefit lability or asset, Past senvice costs are recognised immediately in the stafement of
comprehensive income.

Defined contribution pension scheme

Selfridges Retail Lmited also operates a separate defined cortribution pernsion scheme. A defined contribution plan is & pension plan under which
the company pays fixed contibutions into o separate entity. The company has ne legal or constructive obligations to pay further contribufions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assats to pay all emplayees the benefits relating to employee senvice in the current and prior periods, Delined
contriputions payakle in respect of defined contribution plcns are charged to operating loss as incurrea.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Employee incentive schemes

The Company introduced a new Bonus Banking Plan (BBP) for certain employees, including directors in February 2021, The BBP fully replaces the
previous long term incentives plan and 15 designed o measure delivery of targats aver one year performance periods based on inyear project
deliverables and profit targets.

Each scheme is a tour yaar cycle, with annual awards being "bonked’ into a virtual BBP account. For each cycle, awards are eamed annually over
the first three years with payments staged over a four year period. 50% of the value of a participants virtual BBP account will be paid out annually
over the first three years, with the balance being paid out at the end of year four The portion not paid out annually (50%) 15 deferred and becomes
the opening balance for the following year. At the end of each four year cycle, any remaining balance peraining to that cycle will be fully paid out.

The cost of the scheme is accrued over the first three years, under a non-staged vesting accounting approach, with the cosis related ta each year
recagnised fully in the statement of comprehensive income that year, as under the rules of the plan the relevant employees become entitled to the
amount that vests each year, although an element of the cash payment is deferred. The next scheme will begin in the tourth year. accruing over
another three year term.

A separate bonus scheme which covers most employees within the business is also in operation, Payments are made based on Company and
individuals' performance.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recorded initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amorfised cost. Generally this results in thelr recognition
at their nominal value.

Gift cards

Unredeemed gift cards are caried on the balance sheet unless the likelihood of redemption is remote in which case they are recognised as
income. This is based an historical nontedemphion rates. These balances are reviewed regularly and updated to reflect management's latest best
ostimates, However, actual redemptions could vary from those estimartes.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obhigation as a result of a past event, it is probable that o fransfer of economic benefits
will be requlired to seftle the obligation. and o religble estimate can be made ot the amount of the obligation. Provisions are valued ot discounted
amounts.

Leases

The Company's principal lease arrangements are for property. IFRS 16 requires that the Company's leased assets are recognised as right-of-use
assets with o corresponding lease liability.

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the following lease payments:

- fixed payments less any iease incentives receivable;

- variabie lease payrments that depend on an index or a rate:

- amounts expected to be payable by the Cempany under residual value guaraniees:

- exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasanably certain to exercise that option; and

- payment of penalfies for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using an incrermental borrowing rate for which the Company uses a risk-free interest rate adjusted for
specifications in fhe lease including the lease term and country, as well as adjusting for whether the asset is Ikely to be secured or unsecured

Subsequent to recognition, each lease payment is allocated between the principal repayment of the licbility and the finance cost or interest
expense element. The finance cost is charged fo the statement of comprehensive incoeme over the lease term so as to produce a canstant periedic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

- the amount of the initial measurernent of lease liability;

- any lease payments made at or befare the commencement date less any lease incentives received; and
- restoration costs.

Subseguently, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straightline basis over the shorter of the asset's useful economic life or the lease term. Right-
of-use assets are adjusted when lease liabilities are remeasured and are also subject fo impairment assessment.

The Company subledses some of its Hght-ot-use assets to third parties. Where substantially all of the risks and rewards transfer to the lessee, the
sublease is classified as a finance lease. otherwise the sublease is an operating lease. Payments received under operating leases are recognised in
the staterment of comprehensive income on o straightine basis aver the period of the sublease.

Cormmercial income and capital contfributions

The amsunt recognised in the statement of comprehensive income ascaunt for elements of commercial income may require the application of
judgement based an the contractual terms in place with suppliers and estimates of amounts a company is entitled fo whare fransactions span the
financial period-end. For our retail stores and our online business, such arrangerments including volume rebates, promotional support and media
income agreemeants do not have ¢ materal impact on our revenue, gross margins of reported profit. Confributions received in respect of property
fit-out costs are amortised aver the shorter of the lease term or the period to the first rent review, or useful econamia life of the associated store fit

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In preparing the financial statements, judgements, estimates and assumptions are made by managemert. which offect the reporfed amounts in
the financial statements, Actual results may differ from these estimates The estimates and assumptions that have o significant rnisk of causing o
materiat adjustment to the carrying value of assets and habilities within the next financial penod are addressed below.

- Catculations made to determine the amount of tax provisions to be recognised. The calculation of the amount te be recognised is based on
the estimaled future taxable results and an estimate of the ultimate tax effect of cerain transactions.

- The Company has an obligation to pay pension benefits fo cerain employees. The cost of these benefits and the present value of the
abligation depend on a number of factors, including; Ife expectancy, salary increases, asset valuations and the discount rate on corporate
bonds. Management estirmates these factors in determining the net pension abligation in the balance sheet, The ossumphons reflect historical
experience and current frends.

See note 24 for the disclosuras of the defined benefit pension scheme. including llustrative impacts on the value of the defined benefit
obligation from changing key assumptions.
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2 Summary of significant accounting pelicies (continued)
2) Critlcal aecounting estimaies and judygemenls {conlinued)

- The annual depreciation charge for property, plant and equipmant and the amerfisation of intangible assets are sensitive to changes in the
edimated useful economic ves and residual values of the ossets. The uselul economic lives and residual values are re-assessed annually,
They are amended when necessary to reflect current estimates, based on technological advancement, tuture investments, economic
utilisation and the physical condition of the assets,

See notes 13 and 14 for the carrying amounts of the intfangble assets and the property, plant and equipment. and notes 2{m) and 2(n) for
the useful economic lives for each class of assets.

- Gift cards are issued without expiry dales. An annual exercise is performed lo estimate future expected non redemption rates by reviewing
historical redemption patierns, recent issuances of cards and expected future trends.

- The Company has significant delerred tax assets created by carried forward operating losses. These assets are only recaverable if 1t is
probable that taxable profits will be available n the future against which the losses can be uilised. Management have reviewed forecasts of
the Company's future profitability and in their judgement it is appropriate to continue to roccognise the deferred tax assets.

- Saas arrangements: Where the Company undertakes (T projects that include both Saa$ arrangements and enhancements 1o the Company’s
own [T assets it is someatimes not possible to directly identify the design, testing, implementation and other general project costs that relate fo
the Saa$ arangement, which can be material. In such cases management makes a judgemental allocation of such costs based on the
relative size of the directly identfiable Saas costs in relation to the total cost of the project. and these allocated costs are then expensed inline
with the accounting policy described in note 2(m). If a different judgement was taken. this could materially irmpact the result for a period
where there has been highly material expenditure on relevant projects that are subject to this allocation.

IFRS 14 requires judgement and astimates to be appled in assessing a lease. The main elements of judgement and estimate are:

- Discount rate: The lease paymenis are discounted using incremental borrowing rates. as in the majority of leases held by the Company, the
interest rate iImalict in the lease is not readily identifiobie. Caiculating the discount rate is an estimate made in calculating the lease liability.
This rote is the rate that Company would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset
N a similar economic environmeant with similar terms and conditions. To defermine the incremental barrowing rate. the Company uses d risk-
free interest rate adjusted for specifications in the lease including the lease ferm and country, os well as adjusting for whether the asset is likely
to be secured or unsecured.
The impact of an incredse/(decredse) of 0.5% on the discount rate applied to the right-of-use asset, depreciation charge, lease liakility and
finanae cost for the reporting period is presented below.

Right-ot-use asset £1758m {decrease)/increase
Depreciation £3.4m (decrease)/increase
Lease liability £178.1m {decrease)/increase
Finance cost £11m increase/{decrease)

- Extension periods (or periods affer termination options): These are only included In the lease lerm if management's jJudgement is that the iease
s reasonably cerlain fo be extended (or not terminated). Management assessed extension pericds on @ lease by lease basis. considenng all
factors and circumstances that craeate an economic incentive to exercise. Including the operational significance of the leass. especially
where utilised for stare retall activities.

Ll

Revenue

The Company views segments based on the locafion of assets. All assets are based in the UK and therefore the Company concludes that there is
only one segment.

The Campany has overseas sales thraugh its onling website. Reverue by geographicol area was as follows:

2022 2021
£m em
UK 554.2 357.6
European Union 1.0 53
Rest of World 8.2 1456
Total revenue 653.4 5085
4 Operating loss
Operating loss is stated after charging/ (crediting) the ems set out below.
Restated
Nate 2022 2021
£m m
Charge of inventory 276.5 2359
Other cost of sales 129 124
Foreign exchange {gains)/losses (within cost of sales) {1.4) 0.1
(Reversal of imparrment}/impairment of inventory {within cost of sales) {1.4) 21
Staif costs & 118.3 108.5
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14 43.6 487
Armartisation of intangible assets 13 24.4 21.5
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 15 41.0 41.5
Logs on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 01
Premisas rent paycble o third parties under oparating leases:
Minimum lease payments - 0.1
Contingent rents 1.3 1.2
(Reversal of impairment) /fimpairment of trade receivables 19 (0.&) 1.9
Previston for guaranteed mivimurn pension liabilities - 02
Other distnbution and administrative expensas 178.9 183.7
Total cost of sales, distribution and administrative expenses 623.5 6581

The operating loss for the 52 weeks ended 30 January 2021 has been restated to reflect the impact of the IFRIC decision on configuration and
austomisation costs in a cloud computing arrangerment relating to 1AS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’ as disclosed in note 2(c).

Staff costs in the 52 weeks ended 30 January 2021 include £8.2m of costs relating fo o restructuring programme that took place in mid-2020. There

was nat an equivalent cost in the 52 weeks ended 29 January 2022,

5 Cther operating income

For the period ended 29 January 2022 there was £2.0m of other operatng income (2021: £12.7m of government grants received).
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Notes ta the financial statements for the period ended 29 January 2022 {continued)

4 Employee costs

Emplayee costs during the perlod amournited lo.

2022 2021
£m m
Wages and salaries 4.6 3.6
Social security costs 10.2 11.2
Amount payable under long term incentrve plan Q2 -
Other pension cosfs 3.4 3.7
Total employee costs 118.3 108.5
7 Employee numbers
Tne average monthly numiber of employees dunng the period was.
2022 2021
Na. No.
Full time 1,769 2,059
Part fime 942 981
Total employees 2,711 3,040
Head office 895 957
Retal operations 1,816 2,083
Total employees 2,711 3.040
8 Directors’ emoluments
2022 2021
£m £&m
Aggregate emoluments 3.7 1.7
Aggregate amounts receivable under leng term incentive plan 2.5 a1
Total directers' emaolurnents 6.2 1.8

The hughest paid director received tatal erncluments of £3.7m (2021: £0.8m).

During the period one director (2027: one director) was remunerated by other group companiss and the Company has received a charge far their
SEIVICEs,

During the period retrement benefits were accruing to three (2021 two) directors under a money purchase scheme. In the financial period,
contributions of £135.387 (2021 £20.639%) were paid info the money purchase scheme.

o

Auditors’ remuneration

Dunng the pericd the Company oblained the following senvices from the Company's auditors and their associates:

2022 2021
£m £m
Auditors' remuneration - for the audit of the Company's financial stalements 0.3 0.3
0.3 0.3
Non-audit fees charged to the Company during the period amounled to £3,000 (2021: £2,500).
10 Finance costs
2022 2021
£m £m
Pension finance cost (note 24) 0.3 0.2
Loan interest expense 2.5 1.1
Inferest expense on lease lahilities 80.6 80.1
Total finance costs 83.4 81.4
11 Income tax credit
2022 2021
£m £m
Current tax
UK corporation tax on loss for the periad @amn (19.2)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (0.3) 0.5
Total current tax (8.4) (19.8)
Deferrad tax
Origination and reversal of tming differences (18.7) {21.5)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 0.4 05
Effect of change in tax rates {10.9) a2
Tetal deferred tax {29.2) {22.2)

Tax on loss (37.8) {42.0)
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13

Income tax credit (continued)

Reconciliation of total tax credit

The UK standard rote of corporation tax for the pericd 15 19% (2021: 19%). The tax credit for the
rate for the reasons sot aut in the following recanciliation:

Loss befare taxation

Tax an lass before taxation at standard rate of 19% (2021 19%)

Tax effects of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purpeses (including ineligble depraciation)

Non taxable receaipts

Adjustments in respect of prior periods
Difference between current and deferred tax rates
Effect of change in tax rate on deferred tax balance

Total tax credit tor the peried

Tax components of other comprehensive income/ (expense)

Tax on items that will not be reclassified to the statement of comprehensive income

Remeasurement of net dafined benefit osset/(liability)

Total tax in other comprehensive income /{expense)

Defarred tax

current and prior period varies from the standard

Restated
2022 2021
£m &m
(121.5) (217.4)
23.1) 41.3)
0.8 08
- ©.2)
0.1 @1
(4.5) -
e a2
(37.6) (42.0)
2022 2021
£m £m
4.6 2.1
4.6 2.1)
4.6 (2.1
4.6 2.1)

Deferred tox balances are measured at a corporation tax rate of 25%, being the substantively enacted rate of tax at the balance sheet daote. In
March 2021 UK budget legislation was announced fo increase the main rate of UK corporation tax from 19% to 25%. effective 01 April 2023. As this
wass substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, deferred tox balances as at 29 January 2022 are measured at 25%

The loss betore taxation for the 52 weeks ended 30 January 2021 has been restated to reflect the impact of the IFRIC decision an configuration and
customisation casts in a cloud computing arrangement relating to 1AS 38 'Intangible Assets’ as disclosed in note 2(c).

Dividends paid

Equity - ordinary

Intenim paid £0.14 {2021: £nil) per £0.20 share

Total dividends pald

Intangible assets

Cost or valuation

As at 02 February 2020 (reported)
Restaternent

As at 02 February 2020 (restatad)
Additions (restated)

Disposals

Reclassification (restated)

As at 31 January 2021 {restated)
Additions

Disposals

Reclassification

Derecognition

As at 29 January 2022

Accumulated amortisation

As ai 02 February 2020 (reported)
Restalement

As at 02 February 2020 (restated)
Charge for the perad {restated)
Disposals

As at 31 January 2021 (restated)
Charge for tha period

Disposals

As af 29 January 2022

Net book value

As at 02 February 2020 {restated)
As at 30 January 2021 (restated)
As ot 29 January 2022

Amaortisation of £24.4m (Restated 2021: £21.5m) is included In administrative expenses in the stalement of comprehensive income.

2022 2021

£m £m

80.0 -

80.0 -

Computer
Computer softfware under

software davelopment Total
£m &m £m
122.9 58.9 1818
(5.6) A.75 (10.3)
117.3 542 171.5
- 19.6 196
.1y - ©.1)
29.7 (25.7) -
1446.9 441 191.0
- 24.8 24.8
(0.8) - (0.8)
12.0 {19.0) -
- {0.4) (04
1651 495 214.6
539 - 53.9
(1.8) - (1.5)
52.3 - 523
21.5 - 21.5
0.1 - @1
73.7 - 73.7
24.4 B 244
(0.8) - (0.8)
97.3 - ?7.3
65.0 54 2 119.2
732 441 117.3
67.8 49.5 117.3

Computer software is amortised over its useful ecanomic life of three to elght years and the remaining amortisation period far material intangible

assets s batween one and seven years
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16

Intangible assets (continued)

Computer software for peneds ended 02 February 2020 and 30 January 2021 have been restated to reflect the impact of the IFRIC decision on
configuration and customisation costs in o cloud computing arrangement relating to |AS 38 “Intangible Assets’ as disclosed in note 2(c).

Property. plant and equipment
Assets in the

Structural Plant and Fixtures and course of
assets machinery fitings  construction Total
m £m £m £m £m
Caost or valuation
As at 31 January 2021 2391 341 284.9 96 567.7
Additions - - - 225 225
Disposals ©.1 4.1 0.4) - 4.4)
Reclassification 140 2.7 5.8 {22.5) -
As at 29 January 2022 253.0 27 200.3 Q.6 5856
Accumulated doprociation
As at 31 January 2021 115.6 218 2085 - 3459
Charge for the period 13.8 42 254 - 43.6
Disposals an [CHD) {0.4) - 4.6
As at 29 January 2022 129.3 21.9 233.7 - 3849
Net bock value
As at 30 January 2021 123.5 12.3 764 9.6 221.8
As at 29 January 2022 123.7 1G6.8 56.6 9.6 200.7
Right-of-use assets
Property Total
Cost or valuation £m &m
As at 31 danuary 2021 1,935.0 1.835.0
Additions 44 4.6
Disposals 1.3 (0.3
As at 29 January 2022 1,938.3 1,938.3
Accumulcted depreciation
As at 31 January 2021 827 827
Charge for the period 41.0 41.0
Disposals a3 a3
As at 29 January 2022 122.4 122.4
Net book value
As at 30 January 2021 1.852.3 1,8523
As at 29 January 2022 1.815.9 1.815.9
Investments
Carrying value of investment in subsidiary undertakings £m
As gt 29 January 2022/30 January 2021 -
The Company has the following investments in subsidiaries
Nature of Country of Class of shares
business incarporation held Ownership
2022 2021
Seffridges Trustee Company Limited Dormant England & Wales Ordinary 100% 100%

The registered office for all the above subsidiaries is 400 Oxford Street, London, W1A 1AB.
The Directors believe that the carrying value of the investments is supported by their underlying net assets

In cccordance with section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, & full list of subsidiaries, the country of incarporation and effective percentage
ownership has been disclosed above with this note.

Deferred tax balances
The deferred tax balance consists of the following defered tox assets:
Restated
2022 2021

m £m
Deferred tax assets due within 12 months - -
Total - -
Deferred tax assets due after more than 12 months 42.8 38.2
Tatal 42.8 38.2
Total deferred tax paosition
Total asset 462.8 38.2
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17 Deferred tax balances (continued)

Te yross movernne ! an lhe defened income fax account is s fallows:
Restated
2022 2021
£m £m
As ot beginning of period 38.2 13.9
Credited to the statemant of comprehensive income 292 222
{Charged) /eredited 1o other compraehensive income/ (expanse) {4.6) 2.1
As at end of period 62.8 38,2
Accelerated Derivative Short term
capital Pension financial timing
Tax losses  allowances {asset)/liability instruments differences Total
€m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 31 January 2021 (restated) 191 153 3.1 - 0.7 38.2
Adjustments In respect of prior pencds {0.4) [(OR)} - - 0.1 (0.4)
Credited/ (charged) fo the staterment 235 63 ©9 i o7 59.6
of comprchensive Income
Charged to ather comprehensive
income ) ) “8 ) .6
As af 29 January 2022 42.2 21.5 {2.4) - 1.5 62.8

The deferred tax assets at 31 January 2021 has been restated to reflect the impact of the IFRIC decision on configuration and customisahon costs in
a cloud computing arrangement relating 1o 1AS 38 “Intangible Assets’ as disclosed in note 2{c).

The Drectors regard the deferred tax asset to be recoverable as, on the basis of all available cvidence, it can be regarded as probable that future
taable profits will be avallable against which the temporaiy differences can be utllised.

18 Inventories

2022 2021
£m £&m
Goods for resale 0.2 771
Inventories are stated after provisions for impairment of £2.3m (2021: £4.3m).
There is no significant difference between the replacement cost of inventories and their carrying amoeunts.
19 Debtors
Restated
2022 2021
Armounts falling due within cne year £m e€m
Trade debtors 39.7 22.3
Right-ofraturn asset 0.6 1.1
Amounts owed by group undertakings 2.5 0.5
Amounts owead by entity underakings under cormmon control 0.2 0.5
Other debtors - a1
Prepayrments and accrued income 1.8 5.7
Corporation tax debtor - 0.2
Deferred tax asset excluding pension (asset)/liability (note 17) 65.2 35.1
Total Debtors 119.8 455

Trade deblors are stated aiter provisions for impairment of £1.6m (2021 £2.9m).

Amounts owed by group undertakings and entifies under common control are non-interest bearing. are unsecured and have no fixed date of
repayment,

Deferred tax asset excluding pension liability at 31 January 2021 has been restated to reflect the impact of the IFRIC decision an configuration and
customisation costs in a cloud computing arrangement relating to 1AS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’ as disclosed in note 2(c).

20 Creditors - amounits falling due within one year

2022 2021

Em £m

Trade creditars 122.8 68.7
Amaunts owed to entity undertakings under common control 0.2 0.1
Lease ligbilities 4.5 59
Corporation tax creditor 0.4 -
Other creditors 3.2 3.1
Taxation and social security 19.7 10.7
Derivative financial instruments {note 22) 0.1 0.3
Deferred income associated with gift card sales 19.8 15.4
Accruals and deferred income 54.4 344
Bank lcan 50.0 -
Tetal trade and other payables due within one year 2771 138.8

Amaounts owed to group undertakings are nonanterest beanng, are unsecured and have no fixed date of repayment.

Buring the period the Company continued fo draw down on its £50.0m revolving credit facility. On 22 December 2021, this facility was amended as
a result of IBOR reform and going torwards interest will be charged at SONIA plus 1.7693% (2021: charged at LIBOR plus 1.65%). The company has
applied the practical expedients provided under ‘phase 2' to this amendment and as such no medification gain or loss has been recognised. The
bank loan is clossed as falling due within one year as the lenders have the right to callin the loan upon o change of control of the Company.
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Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year

2022 2021

£m £m

Bark loan - 50.0
Arnounts owad to entily undertakings under common conirol - 200
Ledase ligbilities 1,859.0 1,943.2
1,959.0 20132

Duting the pricr perdod the Company entered into an agreement which will allow it fo borrow up to £80.0m frem an entity under common contrel to
cover working capital and liquidity commitments  This was subsequently increased to £120.0m in the current peried. On 23 December 2021, this
facility was amended as o result of IBOR reform and gaing forwards interest will be charged of SONIA plus 3 3693% (2021: charged at LIBOR plus
3.25%). The facility is available unhl June 2022.

The total cash outflow in respect of leases during the period was §69.7m (2021 568 4m).

Financial instruments

The Company has the following financial iabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss:

2022 2027
£m £m
Derivative financial instruments 0.1 0.3

Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into forward currency confracts to mitigate the exchange rate nsk for cerfain foreign currency poyables At 29 January 20272,
the outstanding contracts all mature within nine months {30 January 2021: within nine months) of the pericd end.

The forward currency contracts are measured at fair value, which is defermined using valuation technigues that utilise obiservable inputs The key
assumnptions used in valuing the derivatives are the exchange rates GBPEUR.

The Company does not fransact In derivative financial instruments for froding or speculative purposes. As hedge accounting is not applied.
derivative financial instruments are classified as fair value thraugh profit or loss.

Financial Risk Management

The Directors consider the Company’s finandial risk profile to be low. The principal financial risks foced by the Company are liquidity. counterparty
exposures, foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations. Risk managemeant is controlled by the Company under palicies approved by the Board of
Directors. The Company identfies. evaluates and hedges financial risks. The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as weil as
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange nsk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-denvatve
financial Instruments, and investment of excess cash

Liquidity is managed by the Company by maintaining bonrowing focilifies, and by arranging access to barrowing facilities managed by the wider
group, at a level that is forecast o provide reasonable headroom in excess of the future needs of the Company. Management estimates the
Company’s requiremeants for future liquidity by maintaining detailed rolling forecasts of cash inflows and outflows.

Provisicns for liabilities

Employee Dilapidations

benefits provision Totat

£&m £m £m

As at 31 January 2021 {13.4) {(4.0) (17.4)
Amount recognised in statement of cormprehensive income (In operating loss) {1.2) {0.4) (1.8)
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 178 - 178
Cantributions paid 40 - 4.0
Unwind of discaunt - [(OR D] (0.1
Amount utilised - 0.2 g2
Net pension asset presented in note 24 7.2 - 72)
As at 29 January 2022 - (1.3) (4.3)

Dilapidations pravision

The dilapidations provision relates to the future costs of reinstating leasehold properties to thair original conditions at the end of the lease term. For
certain propery leases, the Company is required 1o restore the leased premises of its retalt stores and offices to their original condition at the end of
ihe respective l2ase terms. A provision has been recognised for the present value of the estimated expenditure required to remave any leasehold
improvements. These costs have been capitalised as part of the cost of leasehold improvements and are amortised over the shorter of the term of
the lease and the useful life of the assets.

Employee benefits
The Company operates a defined benefit and a defined contrnbution pension scheme.
Defined benefit scheme

Selfridges Retall Limited operates o defined benefit pension scheme in the UK, the Selfridges Pension Scheme praviding benefits 1o its members. The
scheme closed to new enfrants on 31 October 2001 and closed to future accrual of benefits on 29 February 2012. Follewing closure fo future
accrual, benefits now increase broadly in line with price inflation. The weighted average duration to payment of the scheme's expected cash fiows
is 17 years,

The scherne is registered with HMRC for tax purposes. and is operated separately from the Company and managed by an independent Trustee.
The Trustec is responsible for payment of the benefits and management of the scheme's assets. The schema is subject to UK regulations overseen
by the Pensions Regulator. which require the Company and Trustes to agree a funding strategy and contribution schedule for the scheme every
three years. The most recent triennial review of the scheme was undertaken as at 05 Apiil 2020 and idenfified a funding deficit of £15.0m. The
Company agreed to extend the existing recovery plan, of £4.0m a year, to 05 April 2023 to remove this defic.

The inifial results of the actuarial valuation as atf 05 April 2020 were updated to the accounting date by an independent qualified actuary in
accordance with |AS 19 'Employes Banafits',
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24 Employee benefits (continued)

Net amount recognised in the balance sheet for the scheme

2022 2021
gm £m
Present value of scheme liabilities (342.7) (359.8)
Fair value of scherne assets 352.3 343.3
Surplus/ (deficit) in the scheme 9.6 {16.5)
Re'ated deferred tax (liakility) /ossct {(2.4) 3.1
Net pension asset/(liability) 7.2 (13.4)
Changes in the net assets/ (liabilities) recognised in the balance sheet
2022 2021
£m m
Opening deficit in the scheme (16.5) (10.0)
Expense to statement of comprehensive income {0.3) 0.4y
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income/ (expense) 22,4 (10.7)
Contributions paid 4.0 4.0
Closing surplus/{deficit) in the scheme 9.6 (16.5)
The lolfowing urnounls are included inlhe slalement of comprehensive incornme:
2022 2021
£m £m
Net interest on net defined benefit asset/ (iabllity) (nete 10) €0.3) {0.2)
Past service cost (included within operating loss) - 0.2)
Tetal charge to statement of comprehensive income {0.3) {0.4)

The costs of adminstering the scheme are met directy by the Company. The Direcfors have received legal advice that the Company can
recognise a current ar projected future surplus under IFRIC 14, Accordingly, there is no restnchion on the recognition of the surplus ot 29 January
2022 for the Schemea, Whare a surplus remains after the liablities of the Scheme are met the Company weuld receive a refund.

The allocation of the scheme's assefs was as follows

2022 2021

£m £m

Infrastructure 43.4 9.2
Multrasset credit 21.7 208
Private credit 38.9 28.7
Property 41.4 38.0
Bonds 51.1 51.7
Liability driven investment 88.0 86.3
Partnership inferests 45.1 50.4
Other 22.5 28.2
Fair value of scheme assets 352.2 343.3

Investment strategy

The Trustee determines the schemia's Investment strategy atter taking appropriate advice from ils investment consultants The Trustee's investment
objective is to ensure that the scheme has adeqguate resources to meet its liabilities and maintain an appropriate funding posttion. The investrment
strategy aims fo deliver greater certainty of investment outcomes by investing largely n assets providing secure. confractual income (primarily
bonds, infrastructure and property). Investment risk is managed by diversifying the assets and funds. and by investing in less volatile asset classes.
The assets Include on interast in a Scottish Limited Partnership involving an agreed income stream paid to the scheme until no Igter than September
2032. The LDI tunds provide leveraged exposure to changes in long-ferm interest rates and inflation.

The majority of the scheme's invesled assets {ail of those except the interest in the Scoftish Limited Partmership) have unquoted prices in aclive
markets. The scheme does not invest directly in financial securities issued by the company.

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

2022 2021
£m £m

Opening defined benefit obligaton 359.8 3421
Interest on defined benefit obligation 5.6 6.1
Actuaria losses/ (gainsy due fo
- Changes in demographic assumptions 4.5 -
- Changes in financial assumptions {18.8) 228
- Experience on banefit obligafions 12 (1.8)
Benefits paid (9.5) [€X)]
Past service charge - 0.2
Closing defined benefit obligation 342.7 359.8
Movement In present value of scheme assets

2022 2021

£m £m

Opening fair value of scheme assets 343.3 3321
Interest income 5.2 59
Actual return excluding interest income 2.3 10.9
Contributions by the Company 4.0 4.0
Benefits paid 9.5 {2.6)
Clasing fair value of scheme assets 352.3 343.3

The actual return on assets cver the period was £14.5m (2021, £146.8m).
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24 Employee benefits {continued)

Dipected conhibutions to the acheme v lhe cuning year are S4.001.

On 26 October 2018, the High Court handed down a judgment coneluding that the Uoyds Bank defined benefit schames should remove the effect
an pension benefits of inequalities between men and women in relation to guaranteed minimum pension {GMP), and concluded on certain
methods that were appropriate to do this. In line with UK practice for companies sponsoring schemes with GMP ligbilities relating to member service
batween May 1990 and April 1997, we assuma this ruling will apply more widely. The estimated impact on ligbilties at the date of the judgment was
an increase of £1.6m. which was recognised in the statement of comprehensive income for the period ending 02 February 2019,

On 20 Novemnber 2020, the High Court handed down a further judgment, stating that pension schemes should pay uplifis IN respect of members
whao had transferred benefits out in the past (back fo 17 May 1990). where those benefits were not equalised in line with the 2018 judgment. The
estimated mpact on liabiities at the date of the judgment is an increase of £80.2m which wos recognised in the stafement of comprehensive
income during the pnor period.

The major assumptions used by the actuary were:

2022 2021
Rate of increase in pensions in payrnent 3.3% 2.9%
Discount rate 2.2% 1.5%
Retail Prices Index (RP inflation 3.4% 2.9%
Consumer Prices Index (CPI} inflation 2.7% 21%

The CPI inflation assumphon is set by assuming it is a fixed amount lower than RPI. Following the Government announcement on 25 November 2020
regarding the future of the RPI, the CPl assumption has been set using a different fixed amount before and aofter 2030. The gap between RPl and CFI
is assumed to be 1.1% pa up to 2030 and 0.1% pa thereafter. The figure of 2.7% pa (2021: 2.1% pa} is a weighted average.

In valuing the labilities of the scheme, morality assuraptions have been made. The assumplions relafing to longevily underlying the pension
scheme labilities of the balance sheet date are based an standard actuarial mortality tables and include an allowance for future improvements in
longevity. The assurnptions are equivalent to expechng a 61-year old fo have the following Iife expectancy:

life expectancy at age &1 for current pensioners 2022 2021
Years Years

- Men 25.2 25.0

- Wornen 28.5 28.2

Life expectancy at age 41 for members retiring in 20 years' time

- Men 26,6 26.5
- Women 26.9 298

Sansitivity analysis
Set out in the table below are the llustrative Impacts on the value of the defined benefit obligation of changing key assumphons.

2022 2021
Assumptian Change in assumption £m £m
Discount rate Decrease by 0.5% per annum +30 +33
Future Price Inflation Increase by 0.5% per annum +19 +22
Assurmed life expectancy ot age 61 Increase by 1 year +13 +13

The calcutations in this section have been carried out using Ihe same method and data as the Company's pensions and accounting figures with
each assumpticn adjusted as shown above. Each assumption has been varied individually and a combination of changes in assumptions could
produce a different result,

By funding its defined benefit pension scheme, the Campany is exposed 1o the risk that the cost of meeting its cbligations 1s higher than anticipated.
This could occur for several reasons, for example:

. Investment refums on the scheme's assets may be lower than anticipated. especially if falls in asset values are not matched by similar falls in
the value of the scherne's liabilities.

. The level of price inflation may be higher than that assumed. resulting in highar payments from the scheme.

. Scheme members may live longer than assumed, tor example due to unanticipated advances in medical healthcare. Members may clso
exercise {or not exercise) opticns in o way fthat leads to increases in the scheme’s liabilities, for example through early retirement or
commutation of pension for cash.

. Legislative changes could alse iead to an increase In the scheme's ligbilities.

The scheme liabilities are calculated using @ discount rate set with refarence o corporate bond yields. If scheme assets underperform this
vield the deficit will increase.

A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase the value placed on the scheme liabllifies, although that will be partially offset by an
increase in the value of the scheme's bond halding.

Defined coniribution scheme

In addition to the defined benetit scheme, Selfridges Retall Lmited has a group defined contribution pension scheme open to all employees, which
commenced following the closure of the defined benefit scheme to new entrants. Contiipulions recognised os an expense by the Company
amounted to £3.6m (2027: £3.7m) dunng the perod.

Outstanding contributions payable at the period end were €0.3m (2021: &nil}.
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25 Called up share capital

26

27

2

co

2022 2021
£m £m

Allotted. called up and fully paid
563,884,098 (2021: 113.884,098) ordinary shares of 50.20 (?021: £1) each 112.8 113.2

During the pericd the Company issued 50,000,000 ordinary shares of ©1 each to its immediate parent company, Selfidges & Co. Limited. The
Company subsequently undertook a share capital reduction by reducing the neminal value of its shares from £1.00 to £0.20 each. The movement
in the nomingl value of the shares of £131,107.278 was transferred to distributable reserves Immediately following the share capital reduction the
Company issued 400,000,000 ordinary shares of £0.20 each to Selindges & Cao. Limited.

Commitments for capital expenditure

Capital commitmants, for which no provision has been made in these financial s‘atements. were as follows: Restated
2022 2021

£m £m

Contracted but not provided for 3.6 12.8
Restated

2022 2021

&m £m

Property. plant and equipment 2.2 70
Infangible assets 1.4 5.8

Commitments for capital expenditure af 30 January 2021 has been restated 1o reflect the impact of the IFRIC decision on configuraton and
customisation costs in a cloud computing arrangement relafing to JAS 38 “Intangible Assets’ as disclosed in note 2{c).

Company as Lessor

Future aggregate minimum lease rental receivable under non-cancellable operating leases based on confractual rental income af period end is a3
follows:

2022 202

£m £m

Not later than one year 0.6 0.5
Later than cne year buf nat later than fwa years 3.5 05
Later than two years but not later than three vears 0.5 05
Later than three years but not later than faur years a5 a.5
Later than four years but not later than five years a.5 0.5
Later than five years 35 40
Total 6.0 6.5

The amounts quated above represent the minimum amounts payable by the lessees to the Company The Company is alse entitted o a vanable
rental element at ¢ fixed percentage of the receipts generated by the lessee.

The Company has one lease In issue, enterad info in June 2018. The lease is for aterm of 15 years. Rents recevable are reviewed every three years.

Related party transactions

Property leases

Certain proparties utilised by the Company are owned by Selfridges Properties Limited and Selfridges Manchester Limited, entity undertakings under
common control. The terms and conditions of such arrangements are contracted on an arm's length basis. The total value of rents paid to entities
under common control was £43.6m (2021: £42.ém). Al the peried end the Company had a balance of €0.1m (2027: £0.4m) payable to (2021:
recervable from) Selfridges Properties Limited and £nil (2021 £nily receivable from Selfridges Manchester Limited.

Transactions with entities under carmmon control

Certain loan faciliies owed by the Company have been received from companies under commaon control. During the period the Company had an
agreement which cllows the Company to borrow up 1o £120.0m from Selfridges Financing Limited. The balance payable at the period end was
£0.1m {2021: £20.7m).

During the period the Company incurred expenses of £0.3m on behalf of SRL Scothish Limited Partnership (2021: £0.3m). The balance recevable at
the peried end was £0.2m ¢2021: £0.1Tm).

During the period, donations of £1.1m ¢2021: £0.5rm) were paid to Selfridges Group Foundation, an entity undertaking under common cantrol.

Gther trading balances

During the petiod the Company conducted business with other antfies under common contral as part of its cngoing business operations. The
balance receivable by the Company at the period end was £nil (2021: £0.1m). Other balances owed to the Company by group companies at the
perod end was £2.5m (2021 £0.5m).

30
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Selfridgas Retail Limited

Naotes to the financial statements for the pericd ended 29 January 2022 (continued)

29 Ultimate holding company
The immeagdate parent undertaking is Selfridges & Co. Limited.

The Ditectors considar the ultimate parent company and controlling party ta be Wittington Investments, Limited which s incorporated in Canada.

SHEL Holdings Europe Limited. which is registered in the UK, is the parent undertoking of the smallest and largest group of underakings to
consolidate these finanaial stotements. Coples of SHEL Holdings Furope Limited consolidated financial statements can be obtained from the
Company Secretary at 103 Wigmore Street, London, WU 1&8.

30 Post balance sheet events

The Company's £120.0m facility agreement with another enfity under cammaen control was due tc mature on 10 June 2022, On 7 June 2022 the
facility agreement was reduced 1o £80.0m, with £40.0m maturing early, and the remaining faciity extended for sx months

In the normal course of business, the Company and its subsidiary are subject to legal praceedings. including regulatory audits, reviews and
nvestigations. Management regularly reviews such proceadings and establishes provisions when o loss is assessed 1o be probaoble ond the amount
of the loss is reasonably eslimable. On 17 May 2022, the Company received a letter from the European Commission in cannection with its
investigation of the fashion sector and requested information regarding the Company’s activities within the Eurapean Economic Area. The
Campany has provided the requested informahon and assessed the financidl risk as remote.
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